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GRACE EVANGELICAL LUTHERAN CHURCH 

HISTORY 

By:  Beulah East – February 1967 

 
Near the close of the nineteenth century, the little town of Waynesboro had a population of 
approximately six hundred fifty (650).  At that time East Waynesboro was Basic City and not a part of 
Waynesboro. 
 
Included in that number were a few devout Lutherans.  They drove their horse drawn vehicles to nearby 
Lutheran churches; namely, Zion, St. James and Bethlehem.  Each church was some five or six miles 
distant, but with mud roads and slow methods of transportation, attending services at these churches was 
very inconvenient.  After worshiping with the neighboring congregations for several years, these 
Lutherans decided to start a church of their own in town. 
 
Sunday, November 24, 1893, a small, but enthusiastic, group met with the Reverend J. L. Schenck, 
pastor of Bethlehem, as their spiritual leader and Grace Church was organized.  Ten members, five men 
and five women, were charter members.  The congregation  of a small Baptist Church located on Ohio 
Street offered their building as a meeting place for this newly organized church. 
 
Services were held on Sunday afternoons with the Reverend Schenck of Bethlehem officiating.  He also 
served as Sunday School Superintendent. 
 
Waynesboro, being an industrial location, rapidly developed into a prosperous town and when people 
moved in from other localities, Lutherans were among them and the small congregation began to grow.  
Soon the members were talking in terms of having a church of their own.  A building lot was purchased 
at the corner of Eleventh Street and Wayne Avenue.  The cost was $200.00. 
 
Phillip Killian, a trustee and charter member of Grace Church was a contractor and builder and 
superintended the building of the church free of charge.  Bricks were made from clay on his property 
and were hauled in wagons to the building site by members of the congregation after completion of their 
days’ work.  The cornerstone for the new church was placed September 24, 1894. 
 
A Ladies’ Aid Society, to which all the ladies in the church belonged, worked faithfully and through 
their efforts, a substantial sum was contributed to the building fund.  From this “aid society”, the various 
women’s organizations of the church have evolved through the years. 
 
A little more than a year after the cornerstone was laid, the basement of the church was completed and 
services were held here until the completion of the church.  Bethlehem, which served as sponsor of 
Grace Church, gave a pulpit and benches and a member of the congregation contributed a small organ.  
It was with joy that the members could at last hold services in their own building even though their 
“chapel” was the basement. 
 
April 7, 1901 was a day long to be remembered by Grace Church.  This was Easter and services were 
being held for the first time in the newly completed church.  Also the first full time minister, the 
Reverend E. C. Cronk, was conducting his first service as pastor of the church.  The church building had 
been completed at a cost of $6,000.  Twelve years later the debt was completely paid off. 
The interior of the church was simple but very beautiful.  The chancel furnishings, also the pews, were 
carved by hand by a member of the congregation, Mr. T. H. Helms.  Twelve beautiful stained glass 
windows were given by members or friends of the church as memorials.  A small bellows type organ 
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was pumped by a youth of the church and later by a colored man.  In time, a motor was installed which 
furnished the volume formerly supplied by hand.  Marshall Helms, son of T. H. Helms, was the church 
organist. 
 

 
 

 
The completed church April 6, 1901 
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(Interior of church at its completion with exception of pipe organ.) 
 
A hot air furnace heated the nave through two registers in the aisle.  The chandelier given by Mr. Joseph 
T. Carr was replaced later with a more modern lighting arrangement. 
 
The first infant baptized in the new church was Harold K. Henkle, son of Mr. and Mrs. Oscar D. Henkle.  
He and his sisters, Helen and Elizabeth, are members of this church at present.  They are the great 
grandchildren of Phillip Killian mentioned previously. 
 
A lot adjoining the church property was purchased in 1907 for a parsonage but the  
building was not ready to be occupied until 1912.  The Reverend J. F. Bruch and  
family were the first occupants.  Reverend Bruch had accepted a call to Grace 
 Church in 1911.  He was a talented musician and worship through music was  
intensified during his pastorate.  He directed the church choir which met in different  
homes for rehearsals.  It was through his effort and the cooperation of Mr. Carl  
Barckhoff, an organ maker who had recently located in Waynesboro, that a pipe 
organ was installed in Grace Church.  They were able to obtain a contribution from  
Andrew Carnegie, a generous millionaire, which made it possible for Grace to  
purchase the organ.  This was the first pipe organ in Waynesboro.  Pastor Bruch retired in 1915 and 
moved to Numedia, PA. 
 
Several months after the resignation of Pastor Bruch, the Reverend E. L. Ritchie accepted the pastorate 
of Grace Church and served almost six years, then offered his resignation to accept work elsewhere. 
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Pastor E.L. Ritchie served Grace 1916-1922 
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In the fall of 1922, Dr. C. F. Steck accepted a call to Grace Church.  During his pastorate, changes and 
additions designed to make the church more beautiful and to create a more worshipful atmosphere were 
made.  The wooden offering plates were replaced with four brass plates.  A receiving basin, two 
candlesticks, altar vases, and a cross (all brass) were given as memorials.  A set of seasonal paraments 
were given either as gifts or memorials. 
 
    Dr. Steck introduced the use of the minister’s robe and a year or two later, the choir  
    wore vestments for the first time.  During the last several years of his residence in  
    Waynesboro, Dr. Steck was ill.  His son, Reverend Charles F. Steck, Jr., and family  
     came to help care for his father.  He assumed the pastorate of Grace Church for a period 
     of two years during his father’s illness. 
 
                           Charles F. Steck, Jr. placed the lovely paneling in the chancel as a memorial gift to his      
     father.  This added greatly to the beauty of the church.  In 1936, he left Waynesboro to  
     become Army Chaplain at Harvard University. 
 
     The first Vacation Bible School was held at Grace Church during Dr. Steck’s pastorate.  
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The Reverend Alfred R. Shumate became pastor of Grace Church February 1, 1937.  During the summer 
of 1937, the church steeple was struck by lightning and damaged to such an extent, it had to be removed.  
It was replaced with a copper cross. 
 
A son of this parish, Virgil A. Moyer, Jr. began preparation for the ministry in 1939. 
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The church with the copper cross 
 
After Pastor Shumate’s resignation in 1943, Grace Church was without a regular pastor for a period of 
eight months.  For a while, Seminarian K. Y. Huddle conducted services on Sunday morning.  Later, his 
brother, Lieutenant Paul Huddle, received his discharge from the army having served as Chaplain in that 
branch of service, and served as supply pastor of Grace Church until a regular minister was called. 
 
In the evening of November 25, 1943, Grace Church celebrated its golden anniversary.  The Reverend 
John R. Brokhoff, pastor of Virginia Heights Church, Roanoke, preached the anniversary sermon to a 
congregation which filled the church.  The membership of Grace Church had increased from a mere 
handful to 240 confirmed members during the fifty year period.  At this time, forty young members from 
the congregation were serving in the armed forces (World War II). 
 
Announcement was made at this service that the Reverend Robert J. Schenck had accepted a call to 
Grace Church and would assume his duties January 1, 1944. 
 
Following the service, an informal reception was held in the Sunday School assembly room.  (This room 
also served as the meeting place for five or six Sunday School classes each Sunday morning.) 
  
Realizing that the children – and adults as well – could not receive proper religious instruction in such 
inadequate quarters as were available and too, at times, the nave of the church was filled to capacity, the 
members began thinking in terms of a new church building.  The first step in this direction was the 
purchasing of a triangular lot in West Waynesboro. 
 
The Reverend Robert J. Schenck became pastor of Grace Church January 1, 1944.  Soon afterwards, the 
congregation began to consider ways and means by which a new church might be built.  No definite 
plans could be decided on and the members felt that they were not financially able to build at this time, 
so little or no progress was made until several years later. 
 
While in Waynesboro, Pastor Schenck served as Chaplain at a nearby German prisoner of war camp.  
The prisoners built a very attractive altar bearing symbols representative of the churches in Germany, 
this they used in their chapel.  When the camp disbanded the altar was given to Grace Church and used 
in the Sunday School assembly room.   
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Pastor Schenck served Grace Church five years then accepted a call to a church in Elgin, Illinois. 
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February 1, 1944, Reverend Charles T. Sardeson came to Waynesboro  
as pastor of Grace Church.  Building plans were again discussed  
but no action taken. 
 
During his stay, changes were made in the women’s organizations.   
There were at this time two functioning groups, the Women’s  
Missionary Society and the Jessie Cronk group.  These two  
organizations were consolidated into the Women of the Church  
to which all the women in the church automatically belonged.   
The activities of the new group were broadened and the women  
were serving in the church more efficiently. 
 
Pastor Sardeson resigned in July 1952 to study for a year in  
Scotland.  The Reverend James A. Rickard of Salem conducted  
Sunday service until Pastor Miller came. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Women’s Missionary Society 1945 or 46 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Reverend Richard A. Miller came to this parish as pastor April 13, 1953. After discussing the 
structure of a new church over a period of several years, plans were at last under way for the actual 
building.  The lot purchased some years earlier was not now considered a suitable location and a more 
desirable lot was found on Wayne Avenue and Thirteenth Street.  The West Waynesboro property was 
exchanged for the Wayne Avenue site and an additional $6,000 was paid for it. 
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On October 31, 1954 following the morning worship service, the congregation went to the new building 
location and conducted a special service, “The Office of Blessing a Church site”.  (see picture below) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Wells Organization came to Waynesboro in January 1955 and conducted a fundraising campaign 
for the new building.  Plans for the church were drawn by Milton L. Grigg and R. E. Lee and Son were 
contractors. 
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Preliminary plans for the new church were presented to the congregation by the architect, Milton A. 
Grigg on September 12, 1955 and were adopted. 
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Pastor Miller resigned February 1957 to take up work elsewhere. 
 
In March 1957 a religious census was conducted. 
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The Reverend James A. Rikard, Professor of Theology at Roanoke College, again served Grace Church, 
driving each Sunday from Salem to conduct worship services.  During this period, several ministerial 
students from Southern Seminary also supplied. 
 
The last of May, Seminarian Robert L. Hock came with his family to serve as student supply during the 
summer months. 
 
The first visual evidence that dreams of a new Grace Evangelical Lutheran Church were becoming a 
reality was the ground-breaking on May 26, 1957.  The ground-breaking ceremony was conducted by 
Dr. R. Homer Anderson.  
 

In the Faith of Jesus of Christ this work is begun and this 
ground is broken, In the Name and to the glory of the Father, 
and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost:  That true faith may 
flourish here and the fear of God and love of the brethren; and 
that this may be a place destined for prayer and the invocation 
and adoration of the Name of our Lord Jesus Christ, Who 
with the Father, and the Holy Ghost, liveth and reigneth, One 
God, world without end.  Amen. 
 

 (Excerpt from order of blessing of ground-breaking.)   
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In June 1957, an Evangelistic mission was held in Grace Church with the Reverend John W Pfahler, 
pastor of St. Luke’s Lutheran Church, Pittsburgh conducting the services.  As the result of polio, Pastor 
Pfahler was a paralytic from the waist down and was confined to a wheel chair.  He with the assistance 
of Mr. Hock conducted an interesting and successful mission. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
More than fifty new members were received into the membership of Grace parish by Mr. Hock during 
the summer months before he returned to Southern Seminary for his final year. 
 
Professor Rikard was asked again to conduct services while this parish was without a resident minister.  
Although the weather was extremely bad and driving was hazardous at times during the winter months, 
Pastor Rikard was present each Sunday morning to conduct worship services. 
 
The pulpit committee made every effort possible during this interim to find a resident minister but was 
unsuccessful.  At a congregational meeting held in February 1958, the decision was made to extend a 
call to Robert L. Hock who would be graduating from the Southern Seminary in June.  He had served 
this parish well during the previous summer and had endeared himself to many of the members of Grace 
Church.  He accepted the call.  Since there had been no regular minister here for more than a year, it was 
gratifying to know that in a few months Grace Church would again have a resident pastor. 
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The well worn hymnals which had been used many years were replaced with the new revised Service 
Book and Hymnal.  The bright red books were arranged very effectively in the chancel so that the white 
edges formed a cross.  In this manner, they were dedicated May 4, 1958 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The service for the blessing of the Service Book and Hymnal was conducted by interim pastor, the 
Reverend James A. Rickard. 
 

BLEST and dedicate be these Service Books and Hymnals to 
the praise of Almighty God, to His honor and glory, and to the 
uplifting of our hearts and minds in the services of His house, 
in the Name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy 
Ghost.  Amen. 
 

  (Excerpt from the service of dedication.) 
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Many of the books were given by individuals of the parish as gifts or memorials.  A complete list of 
those who gave may be found in the church’s Gift and Memorial Book. 
 
 
 
 
After his ordination, the Reverend Robert L. Hock  
moved to Waynesboro June 15, 1958 and became  
pastor of Grace Church.  This was his first pastoral  
assignment.    
 
Soon after Pastor Hock arrived in  
Waynesboro, the cornerstone of the church was  
opened and the box and its contents were removed. 
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Following the morning service June 29, 1958, the congregation of Grace Church went to the  
building site of the new church for the service of laying the cornerstone. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The children as well as the grown-ups were interested in the laying of the cornerstone. 
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During the next several months, there was much activity in and around the new church being erected at 
the corner of Wayne Avenue and Thirteenth Street.  Not only were the workmen busy adding the 
finishing touches, but members of the church were going in and out in eager anticipation of the 
completion of the church building and acquainting themselves with the new structure so different from 
the place of worship currently in use.  Originally this unusual building was somewhat of a shock to 
many of the residents of Waynesboro, but when it was completed and the grounds landscaped, its 
striking appearance became a source of local pride. 
 
September 7th, 1958, the last service was held in the old church at the corner of Wayne Avenue and 
Eleventh Street.  The doors to a place of worship, which had been in use for almost sixty years, were 
closed, but many cherished memories associated with this church were carried into the new building. 
 
One week later, on the 14th, the first service was held in the newly completed church.  Many of the 
furnishings in the church were given as memorials or gifts.  A complete list of these gifts may be found 
in the church’s Gift and Memorial Book. 
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Although service was held in the new church a week earlier, the real joy of worshiping in the new 
sanctuary was experienced on September 21st when the church was dedicated to the Glory of God.  
Hearts were filled with praise and thanksgiving as the congregation worshiped in the beautiful new 
church, so long a dream, now a reality.  A complete account of the dedication is given in the clipping 
from the local newspaper. 
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The congregation assembled in front of the church and entered in a body singing, “Open Now Thy Gates 
of Beauty”. 
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On April 17, 1960, the organ chimes, a memorial to the late Wesley R. Ely, who had met with a fatal 
airplane accident on October 30, 1959 were dedicated.  Many people from other denominations were 
present for this service. 
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The new church had been built in such a way than an educational unit could be added when needed and 
funds were available. 
 
With the expansion of local plants and new industries moving in, many new people were coming to 
Waynesboro to live.  As a result, the membership of Grace Church was steadily growing.  Already 
crowded facilities for Sunday School instruction were presenting a problem.  Classes were meeting in 
the choir loft, the church kitchen, the storage closet, two in the nave, six in the fellowship hall and 
wherever space was found for a few chairs.  Knowing that proper instruction was impossible under such 
conditions, plans for the educational building were discussed with the hope of adding the new unit in the 
near future. 
 
The old church property had been in the hands of real estate agents for several years and was finally sold 
March 12, 1962 for the sum of $4,000.  The sale paved the way for the construction of the sorely needed 
educational building.  Plans and estimates were presented to the congregation, and at a called meeting 
May 12, 1962 an almost unanimous vote was passed in favor of immediate construction of the new unit.     
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On May 20th, 1962 a special ground breaking ceremony for the educational unit was conducted by 
Pastor Hock.  J. B. Wine and Son, contractors, started work on the new structure a few days later. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 29 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 30 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 31 

 
 
Classes met for instruction in the new Educational Building May 26, 1963 and each class having its own 
spacious and well equipped room for the first time since the organization of the church. 
 
Work on the new unit was not completed until November and on the 24th of that month the new building 
was dedicated by Pastor Hock.  Sermon was preached by the Reverend V. A. Moyer. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
After five and a half busy and fruitful years as Pastor of Grace Church, Pastor Hock resigned, effective 
January 7, 1964.  He accepted a call to Ebenezer Church in Columbia, SC. 
 
Until September, services were conducted in Grace Church by ministers who happened to be available 
or by laymen of this church.  The Reverend Max Huddle, pastor of Zion-St. James parishes, was most 
cooperative during this period offering his services when needed. 
 
In April 1964, the Virginia Synod met in Grace Church.  This was the first time this body had met in 
Waynesboro.  Although currently without a minister, plans were well made and carried through. 
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On September 13, 1964, the Reverend George E. Handley who had been serving as Associate Pastor in 
Christ Church, York, PA, came to Waynesboro and assumed pastorate of Grace Church. 
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Three newly installed memorial windows in the chapel were dedicated Sunday, June 11, 1967.  One of 
these was given by Mrs. Charles T. Houff and friends in memory of her husband.  The second was given 
by Pastor Robert L. Hock and family in memory of his mother, Mrs. Josephine Long.  The third was a 
memorial to members of Grace Church, given through the Thanksgiving and Memorial Fund. 
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The year 1968 marked the 75th anniversary of Grace Church.  During the year, five former pastors of the 
church were guest speakers at Sunday morning worship services.  A newspaper account of each follows. 
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After serving Grace Church for almost ten years, Pastor Handley resigned in February 1974 to become 
an assistant to the president of Virginia Synod.  Much was accomplished at Grace Church during the 
pastorate of Pastor Handley and it was with reluctance that the congregation accepted his resignation.  
He preached his final sermon April 21, 1974 and shortly thereafter moved with his family to Roanoke. 
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    August 15, 1974, Robert J. Richards began his pastorate at Grace   
    Church.  Prior to coming to Waynesboro, he had completed a year   
    of training in Pastoral Care and Counseling at the Menninger   
    Foundation in Topeka, Kansas.  He had also completed the Master   
    of Sacred Theology degree counseling at Dubuque Seminary in Iowa. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 25, 1976, the Reverend V. A. Moyer, a former member of Grace Church who entered the 
ministry in 1939, was installed as President of the Virginia Synod.  Services for this occasion were held 
in the Baptist Church since the seating capacity of the sanctuary of that church was greater than that of 
Grace Church.  Dr. Robert J. Marshall, president of LCA, presided at this beautiful and impressive 
service.  A reception followed in the fellowship hall of Grace Church. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 17, 1978 an appropriate service was held commemorating twenty years in the present church.  
At this service, a new dossel was dedicated as a memorial to Ray Seachrist who had met a tragic death 
some months previous. 
 
November 19, 1978 a thankful congregation celebrated the burning of the building mortgage during the 
morning worship service.  Pastor Richards conducted the service offering prayers of dedication and 
thanksgiving. 
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After serving as pastor of Grace Church ten years, the Reverend Robert J. Richards resigned September 
6th, 1984. 
 
Although Grace Church was without a resident pastor for almost a year following Pastor Richards’ 
resignation, services were held each Sunday.  The president of the Virginia Synod appointed a supply 
minister for each Sunday.  During the interim, the Reverend Robert Humphrey, pastor of Zion parish 
served as Vice Pastor. 
 
Having accepted a call to become pastor of Grace Church, The Reverend Glenn L. London, Jr. and 
family moved to Waynesboro June 15, 1958.  Previous to coming to Waynesboro, Pastor London had 
served several parishes in the Virginia Synod. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 6th was a memorable date in the history of Grace Church.  This marked the ninetieth 
anniversary of this church.  Former pastors were invited to attend this celebration.  Three were present, 
two others had commitments elsewhere and could not attend.  Former members, no longer living in 
Waynesboro were also invited, a number returned for this special occasion. 
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Saturday evening, November 5th, a banquet was held in the fellowship hall.  A bountiful dinner was 
served after which a most enjoyable evening was spent with Grace members and guests greeting one 
another and recalling past memories.  A special feature of the evening was a severe “roasting” of the 
pastors present by the masters of ceremonies, James Lunger and Fred Meier. 
 
Sunday evening, November 6th, Bishop V. A. Moyer, a ministerial son of Grace Church, was guest 
speaker.  Former pastors participated in some way in the service.  Following the service a reception 
honoring the pastors and guests was held in the fellowship hall. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 7, 1986 was known as the “Reverend Roger S. Klutz day” at Grace Church.  Roger was a 
member of Grace Church when he entered the ministry in 1957.  During his more than 25 years of 
ministerial service, he has been pastor of several parishes and has served in various capacities in the 
Virginia Synod.  On “his day” at Grace Church he was guest preacher at the 11:00 a.m. service.  
Following the service, lunch and a fellowship period were enjoyed in the social hall. 
 
At present he is serving the Wytheville, VA parish. 
 
September 1, 1988 was a very special day at Grace Lutheran Church.  This day was known as “The 
Reverend V. A. Moyer Appreciation Day”.  V. A. was a son of Grace Church and was ordained October 
7, 1945 in Grace Church. 
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Two young men from Grace Church have entered into full time Christian service.  The Reverend V. A. 
Moyer, at the time of this writing, is assistant to J. Luther Mauney, President of Virginia Synod.  Roger 
S. Klutz is pastor of Abingdon Lutheran Church. 
 
A complete record of his service in the Virginia Synod, from his ordination until his retirement in 1988, 
of the events of V. A. Moyer Day may be found in the back of this book. 
 
In 1981, Janice Marie Ely, a daughter of Grace Church, entered the Lutheran Seminary in Gettysburg; 
and received her Masters in Divinity in June of 1986.  She was ordained in Grace Church March 6, 
1988. 
 
At present (1988), she is Pastor of The Church of the Living Word, Columbus, MD. 
 
May 17, 1990 was the date Linda S. Mitchell, daughter of Norah and Jesse Mitchell of Grace Church, 
was ordained at St. Andrews Roman Catholic Church, Roanoke, VA.  She entered the Lutheran 
Theological Southern Seminary, Columbia, SC in June 1986 and received her Masters Degree in May 
1990.  She is at present (1992) Associate Pastor of Christ Lutheran Church, Roanoke, VA. 
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Memorial Windows in the old Grace Church. 
 - Mr. Oscar D. Henkel gave two windows in the rear of the church in memory of his 
  grand parents, Phillip and Rebecca Killian. 

- Mrs. John Brower gave a window in memory of her sister, Georgia A. Coyner. 
- Mr. Bob Robertson gave a window in memory of his mother, Mrs. Sarah Robertson. 
- Mr. A. G. Henkel gave windows in memory of his wives, Fannie Killian Henkel and Etta 

Coyner Henkel. 
 



 55 

- Mrs. A. G. Henkel gave a window in memory of her brother, George Hottel and one in 
memory of Nannie Henkel. 

- The lovely window above the altar was given by the Sunday School. 
 

The following group of ten personal charter members of Grace Church (1893) were: 
- Dr. A. C. Fox, a practicing physician 
- Miss Emma Thomas 
- Mrs. John Brower 
- Mrs. J. W. Lobban 
- Phillip Killian 
- O. D. Henkel 
- Mr. and Mrs. A. G. Henkel 
- Mr. and Mr. C. P Garber 
 

 
Ministers who have served Grace Church since her organization in 1893 were: 

- Rev. J. D. Schenck  Nov. 24, 1893  April 1, 1894 
- Rev. E. A. Shenk April 1, 1894* November 1, 1898 
- Rev. W. R. Brown January 1, 1899 April 22, 1900 
- Rev. J. O. Glenn June 1, 1900 September 1, 1900 
- Rev. E. C. Cronk January 1, 1901 October 5, 1903*  
- Rev. Y Von A. Riser March 1, 1903 May 2, 1906 
- Rev. J. G. Graichen January 1, 1907 June 10, 1911 
- Rev. J. F. Bruch November 1, 1911 1915 
- Rev. E. L. Ritchie 1916 1922 
- Rev. Chas. F. Steck DD Otober 15, 1923 April 1, 1934* 
- Rev. Alfred R. Shumate February 1, 1937 April 1, 1943 
- Rev. Robert J. Schenck January 1, 1944 January 10, 1949 
- Rev. Charles L. Sardeson February 1, 1944 August 30, 1952 
- Rev. Richard A. Miller April 13, 1953 February 1, 1957 
- Rev. Robert L. Hock June 15, 1958 January 7, 1964* 
- Rev. George E. Handley September 13, 1964 April 21, 1974 
- Rev. Robert J. Richards August 15, 1974 September 5, 1984 
- Rev. Glenn L. London, Jr. June 15, 1985 1989 
- Rev. Robert F. Humphrey April 15, 1990 2010 
- Rev. James E. Koepke Director of Youth  

 * Correction to dates per plaques 

  EA Shenk – 1895–1898 
  EC Cronk – 1901-1902 

  JF Bruch -   1912-1915 
  CF Steck -   1923-1933 
  RL Hock -   1958-1963 
Ministers who have served Grace Church since her organization in 1893 were: 

- Rev. J. D. Schenck 11/24/1893  04/01/1894 
- Rev. E. A. Shenk 04/01/1894 11/01/1898 
- Rev. W. R. Brown 01/01/1899 04/22/1900 
- Rev. J. O. Glenn 06/01/1900 09/01/1900 
- Rev. E. C. Cronk 01/01/1901 10/05/1903  
- Rev. Y Von A. Riser 03/01/1903 05/02/1906 
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- Rev. J. G. Graichen 01/01/1907 06/10/1911 
- Rev. J. F. Bruch 11/01/1911           1915 
- Rev. E. L. Ritchie           1916           1922 
- Rev. Chas. F. Steck D.D. 10/15/1923 04/01/1934 
- Rev. Alfred R. Shumate 02/01/1937 04/01/1943 
- Rev. Robert J. Schenck 01/01/1944 01/10/1949 
- Rev. Charles L. Sardeson 02/01/1944 08/30/1952 
- Rev. Richard A. Miller 04/13/1953 01/01/1957 
- Rev. Robert L. Hock 06/15/1958 01/07/1964 
- Rev. George E. Handley 09/13/1964 04/21/1974 
- Rev. Robert J. Richards 08/15/1974 09/05/1984 
- Rev. Glenn L. London, Jr. 06/15/1986           1989 
- Rev. Robert F. Humphrey 04/15/1990 04/04/2010 
- Rev. James E. Koepke Director of Youth 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


